

In the Matter of:

CITY OF COLUMBIA CITIZENS POLICE REVIEW BOARD

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

September 11, 2019



www.tigercr.com 573.999.2662

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CITY OF COLUMBIA
CITIZENS POLICE REVIEW BOARD

Transcript of Meeting

September 11, 2019, 6:00 p.m.
City Hall, Council Chambers
Columbia, Missouri

Reported by: Lisa M. Banks, CCR 1081, CVR

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

2 Darryl Smith, Chair

3 Andrew Fisher, Vice Chair

4 Cornelia Williams

5 Travis Pringle

6 Nicole Seamon

7 Randall Kilgore

8

9 ALSO PRESENT:

10 Rose Wibbenmeyer, Assistant City Counselor

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 MR. SMITH: It's six o'clock. I'd like to call
2 to order the September meeting of the CPRB. Ms. Catlettstout is
3 excused. Mr. Fisher?

4 MR. FISHER: Here.

5 MR. SMITH: Ms. Grover is excused. Mr. Nickels
6 is excused. Mr. Pringle?

7 MR. PRINGLE: Here.

8 MR. SMITH: Ms. Seamon?

9 MS. SEAMON: Here.

10 MR. SMITH: Mr. Smith is here. Ms. Williams?

11 MS. WILLIAMS: Here.

12 MR. SMITH: Mr. Kilgore?

13 MR. KILGORE: Here.

14 MR. SMITH: I do not see our liaison from CPD.
15 And from the City, let the record reflect Ms. Rose Wibbenmeyer
16 is here.

17 MR. SMITH: Is there a motion to approve the
18 agenda?

19 MR. FISHER: So moved.

20 MR. SMITH: Is there a second?

21 MS. WILLIAMS: Second.

22 MR. SMITH: All in favor let it be known by aye.

23 (Unanimous ayes.)

24 MR. SMITH: Anyone opposed let it be known by
25 nay.

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 (No response.)

2 MR. SMITH: Motion approved, the agenda passes.
3 We do have a quorum. Moving on to Item 4,
4 approval of the minutes. Did everyone receive the draft of the
5 opening meeting minutes for August?

6 MS. SEAMON: Yes.

7 MR. SMITH: Any changes or amendment? All in
8 favor of approval of the meeting -- opening minute meeting.

9 MS. WIBBENMEYER: Is there a motion?

10 MR. FISHER: I move to approve the meeting
11 minutes.

12 MR. SMITH: Is there a second?

13 MR. PRINGLE: Second.

14 MR. SMITH: All in favor of the approval of the
15 opening minute meetings, let it be know by aye.

16 (Unanimous ayes.)

17 MR. SMITH: Anyone oppose let it be known by
18 nay.

19 (No response.)

20 MR. SMITH: Motion carries.

21 Did everyone receive the transcript of the
22 meeting -- meeting transcript? Did we send it?

23 MS. WIBBENMEYER: You don't have to approve
24 that. You need to approve the close meeting minutes.

25 MR. SMITH: Okay. Did everyone receive the

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 closed meeting minutes?

2 MR. FISHER: Yes.

3 MS. SEAMON: Yes.

4 MR. SMITH: Is there a motion to approve?

5 MR. PRINGLE: So moved.

6 MR. SMITH: Is there a second?

7 MS. SEAMON: Second.

8 MR. SMITH: All in favor of approval of the
9 closed meeting minutes let it be known by aye.

10 (Unanimous ayes.)

11 MR. SMITH: Anyone opposed let it be known by
12 nay.

13 (No response.)

14 MR. SMITH: Motion to approve carries.

15 MS. WIBBENMEYER: On that one, I have Nicole
16 Seamon as being the second. Was someone else also second? And
17 Andrew. Okay.

18 MR. FISHER: Okay.

19 MR. SMITH: Moving on to Item 5, positive
20 connections and ride alongs.

21 MS. WILLIAMS: I had a positive connection --

22 COURT REPORTER: I can't hear you. Are the mics
23 on?

24 MS. WILLIAMS: I had a positive connection with,
25 I believe his name was Officer Schaefer. In the situation he

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 was -- I was there observing because it was with my job. And it
2 was with a gentleman who was clearly in distress and instead of
3 Officer Schaefer arresting him, he actually did the appropriate
4 thing to make sure that he got the resources that he needed.
5 And to me I was very impressed with that because he could have
6 just simply said, you know, I'm putting these handcuffs on you,
7 get in the back of the patrol car. We're going downtown. Blah,
8 blah, blah. But he assessed the situation, slowly took his time
9 to deal with it. And I told him in the end that I was very
10 impressed with him. It was a good training moment for the other
11 officer that was with him.

12 MR. SMITH: Anyone else? Hearing nothing,
13 moving on to Item 6, old business.

14 MR. FISHER: So the supplemental annual report,
15 I sent out a draft to the other members that offered to help and
16 haven't heard anything back yet. The one question I did have
17 and I can bring this to the board as a whole, the CPD has issued
18 new reports this year, the three that we got last meeting. I
19 didn't know if we wanted to comment or add anything to that,
20 given those. If not, we could have done this report back in
21 March because we had everything. I think we were confused on
22 what the new information was going to be from CPD.

23 I don't know if you all have had a chance to
24 read those and have any comments or anything. We can put
25 something in that --

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 MR. SMITH: Did we get those electronically?

2 MR. FISHER: Yes. During the last meeting.

3 There is a report I think on racial profiling, traffic stops and
4 maybe use of force.

5 MR. PRINGLE: Yeah, use of force was the third
6 one.

7 MS. SEAMON: It was in an email from Tracy.

8 COURT REPORTER: I cannot not hear you guys.

9 MR. SMITH: If we could all lean forward into
10 the microphones for the benefit of our transcriptionist. Again,
11 thank you for being here.

12 MR. FISHER: So I think there could be --
13 requirements.

14 MR. SMITH: What does the board feel? Is that
15 something that we need to add to the supplemental or can we meet
16 or can we run with the supplemental?

17 MR. FISHER: I mean, it's -- either way I don't
18 know if they're going to do this every year. It could be
19 something to at least to recognize.

20 MR. SMITH: When was it submitted?

21 MR. FISHER: They have been working on it for a
22 while.

23 MR. PRINGLE: This has May 6th, 2019 -- the
24 department reports.

25 MR. SMITH: And so this is supplement to our

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 2018.

2 MR. FISHER: Yes.

3 MR. SMITH: And so it would be in our 2019
4 report.

5 MR. FISHER: No. It would be in the 2018. It's
6 their report, kind of at the end of the year. They have to
7 release something by March, which are the numbers. Then these
8 were something extra. I think they were going through the
9 review process through the chain of command and whatnot. So
10 everybody take a look at it and send me an email if you have
11 thoughts.

12 MR. SMITH: Sure. How does the board feel? Any
13 opinions?

14 MS. SEAMON: I'm indifferent. I feel like it is
15 similar to what you already --

16 MR. PRINGLE: -- same results -- compliance --
17 it's probably not going to be routine thing.

18 MR. FISHER: You think they're just doing it
19 this year?

20 MR. PRINGLE: That what it seems to be because
21 it's all just --

22 MS. WILLIAMS: And well, it all depends on how
23 often that they have to renew their certification. Sometimes
24 certification you can be -- you can get awarded two years,
25 sometimes you get it awarded a year. It all depends on if you

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 are in compliance with everything. So it will all depend on if
2 you are in compliance.

3 MR. FISHER: I guess we can ask --

4 MR. SMITH: Rose, is there a deadline by which
5 we have to submit our supplement?

6 MS. WIBBENMEYER: No.

7 MR. SMITH: Okay. Anything else on the annual
8 report? Hearing nothing, let's move on to the Outreach Plan.

9 MR. FISHER: We're still working on edits.
10 Actually we had a couple comments the last time. I wasn't able
11 to finish my edits to it for this meeting, so by next meeting.
12 We'll just keep it on there and move along.

13 MR. SMITH: All right. Anything from the rest
14 of the board? Hearing nothing, let's move on to Item 7, new
15 business, audit of appeals. I wasn't here last month, so
16 someone?

17 MR. FISHER: This was something Randall send out
18 and then we didn't discuss anything on it.

19 MR. KILGORE: I wasn't here.

20 MR. FISHER: He wasn't here either.

21 MR. KILGORE: Actually, I wouldn't have maybe
22 titled it Audit of Appeals. It's really Audit of the Ordinance
23 that creates this board. And I had Travis look at it just as a
24 reviewer and I think I sent it to all the rest of you.

25 MS. WILLIAMS: You did.

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 MR. KILGORE: I received no other comment back.
2 My thinking at the time it was created was just a way for this
3 board to have a work product at the end of the year that says we
4 understand the ordinance. We understand that there are criteria
5 in the ordinance that we need to meet. So really, it's just an
6 audit of the ordinance and the requirements of the ordinance.
7 And if we do find something that is out of compliance, it's a
8 way for us to take action, follow-up, make sure that we are in
9 compliance with the ordinance.

10 MR. SMITH: So basically we are looking and
11 comparing our performance to the requirements of the ordinance?

12 MR. KILGORE: Yes.

13 MR. SMITH: Okay.

14 MR. FISHER: And we can add that to our annual
15 review where we kind of say we've done what we were suppose to
16 do.

17 MR. KILGORE: It's really just a self-policing
18 way for the board to say whoever the leadership is at the time,
19 we've been through this exercise, we know that there may be
20 particular areas of the ordinance that we're not quite getting
21 or we have a gap somewhere that allows us to track that for our
22 annual report. It just -- it promotes transparency, I think.

23 MR. SMITH: Sure. And should we also bring
24 into, you know, if we were looking to include that, should we
25 also look at the standards as recognized by --

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 MR. FISHER: We could. Yeah.

2 MR. PRINGLE: Copy Randall's template because it
3 is a great way of just checking off we're doing what we are
4 supposed to do.

5 MR. SMITH: Any other discussion on this item?

6 MR. FISHER: I want to thank you for doing this,
7 Randall.

8 MR. KILGORE: Yes.

9 MR. SMITH: Absolutely. Moving on to Item 8,
10 general comments by the public, members, and staff. Anyone from
11 the public that wishes to speak?

12 (No response.)

13 MR. SMITH: Hearing nothing from the public,
14 anything from the members?

15 MR. FISHER: I just have a question. I have
16 been meaning to ask this for three meetings. What is the price
17 of the transcript? What is that?

18 MS. WIBBENMEYER: Do you mean how much?

19 MR. FISHER: Yes.

20 MS. WIBBENMEYER: I can get you the actual
21 numbers, but each time it's been around, I think, 4-- to 500.

22 MR. FISHER: Okay. So it's per hour?

23 MS. WIBBENMEYER: Oh, that price? I thought you
24 meant the total for the meeting. I'll have to look it up.
25 There is a per page price along with an after-hours attendance

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 price.

2 MR. FISHER: Okay. I just -- we can see if
3 we're going to run out of money or not.

4 MS. WIBBENMEYER: You're fine right now.
5 Because you have plenty -- this is miscellaneous services. You
6 have plenty in the miscellaneous services because you have not
7 used for a mediator or interpreter. If suddenly there was an
8 increase in the funds being used for mediators or interpreters,
9 then at some point we might have to ask for another
10 appropriation, but you should be fine.

11 MR. FISHER: Okay.

12 MS. WIBBENMEYER: And -- yeah.

13 MR. SMITH: Anything else?

14 MR. KILGORE: I just wanted to draw attention to
15 the fact that October will be my last meeting. My term ends
16 with the October meeting. So just to remind you, I'm here as a
17 representative to the Human Rights Commission. This seat is the
18 liaison to this board from that commission. In an effort to
19 make that a seamless transition our guest from the public is
20 here tonight, just observing to see how the board works. This
21 is part of our goal to make this transition easier and a little
22 better. I've been collecting information, getting documents
23 together that will allow me to orient whoever that's going to
24 be. I'll be with you in October. Hopefully there will be
25 someone new, if she doesn't get up and run out of the room, here

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1 starting in November.

2 MR. SMITH: Would he or she like to do an
3 informal hello. How are you?

4 MS. GOMEZ: Hi, I'm Carly Gomez.

5 MR. SMITH: Hi, how are you?

6 MS. GOMEZ: Good. Thank you. How are you all?

7 MR. SMITH: Not bad.

8 MS. SEAMON: Nice to meet you.

9 MR. SMITH: It's good to meet you. And if we
10 don't scare you off too much, we look forward to potentially
11 hearing more about you in October or November.

12 MS. GOMEZ: Thank you.

13 MR. SMITH: Anything else? Moving on to Item 9,
14 is there a motion to go into a closed session?

15 MR. PRINGLE: So moved.

16 MS. WIBBENMEYER: This needs to state the
17 reason.

18 MS. WILLIAMS: Motion to go into closed session
19 pursuant to Section 610.021 (12) RSMo, sealed proposals and
20 selected documents or any documents related to or renegotiated
21 contract until the contract is executed and all proposals are
22 rejected.

23 MR. SMITH: There's been a motion to go into
24 closed session. Is there a second?

25 MR. FISHER: Second.

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

MR. SMITH: All in favor -- we will do it via roll call vote. Ms. Catlettstout is excused. Mr. Fisher?

MR. FISHER: Yes.

MR. SMITH: Ms. Grover is excused. Mr. Nickels is excused. Mr. Pringle?

MR. PRINGLE: Yes.

MR. SMITH: Ms. Seamon?

MS. SEAMON: Yes.

MR. SMITH: Mr. Smith is yes. Ms. Williams?

MS. WILLIAMS: Yes.

MR. SMITH: Finally, Mr. Kilgore?

MR. KILGORE: Yes.

MR. SMITH: Motion to go into closed session is approved. Will members of the public please leave the room.

(Off the record at 6:17 p.m.)

TRANSCRIPT OF MEETING

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

I, Lisa M. Banks, CCR within and for the State of Missouri, do hereby certify that the witness whose testimony appears in the foregoing deposition was duly sworn by me; that the testimony of said witness was taken by me to the best of my ability and thereafter reduced to typewriting under my direction; that I am neither counsel for, related to, nor employed by any of the parties to the action in which this deposition was taken, and further, that I am not a relative or employee of any attorney or counsel employed by the parties thereto, nor financially or otherwise interested in the outcome of the action.



Lisa M. Banks, CCR No. 1081

(action 10:8	bring 6:17 10:23	criteria 10:4
(12) 13:19	actual 11:20	business 6:13 9:15	D
2	add 6:19 7:15 10:14	C	deadline 9:4
2018 8:1,5	after-hours 11:25	call 14:2	deal 6:9
2019 7:23 8:3	agenda 4:2	car 6:7	department 7:24
4	alongs 5:20	Carly 13:4	depend 9:1
4 4:3	amendment 4:7	carries 4:20 5:14	depends 8:22,25
4-- 11:21	Andrew 5:17	Catlettstout 14:2	discuss 9:18
5	annual 6:14 9:7 10:14,22	certification 8:23,24	discussion 11:5
5 5:19	appeals 9:15,22	chain 8:9	distress 6:2
500 11:21	appropriation 12:10	chance 6:23	documents 12:22 13:20
6	approval 4:4,8,14 5:8	checking 11:3	downtown 6:7
6 6:13	approve 4:10,23,24 5:4,14	close 4:24	draft 4:4 6:15
610.021 13:19	approved 4:2 14:14	closed 5:1,9 13:14, 18,24 14:13	draw 12:14
6:17 14:15	areas 10:20	collecting 12:22	E
6th 7:23	arresting 6:3	command 8:9	easier 12:21
7	assessed 6:8	comment 6:19 10:1	edits 9:9,11
7 9:14	attendance 11:25	comments 6:24 9:10 11:10	effort 12:18
8	attention 12:14	commission 12:17, 18	electronically 7:1
8 11:9	audit 9:15,22 10:6	comparing 10:11	email 7:7 8:10
9	August 4:5	compliance 8:16 9:1, 2 10:7,9	end 6:9 8:6 10:3
9 13:13	awarded 8:24,25	confused 6:21	ends 12:15
A	aye 4:15 5:9	connection 5:21,24	excused 14:2,4,5
Absolutely 11:9	eyes 4:16 5:10	connections 5:20	executed 13:21
	B	contract 13:21	exercise 10:19
	back 6:7,16,20 10:1	Copy 11:2	extra 8:8
	bad 13:7	couple 9:10	F
	basically 10:10	COURT 5:22 7:8	fact 12:15
	benefit 7:10	CPD 6:17,22	favor 4:8,14 5:8 14:1
	blah 6:7,8	created 10:2	feel 7:14 8:12,14
	board 6:17 7:14 8:12 9:14,23 10:3,18 12:18, 20	creates 9:23	

<p>Finally 14:11</p> <p>find 10:7</p> <p>fine 12:4,10</p> <p>finish 9:11</p> <p>Fisher 4:10 5:2,18 6:14 7:2,12,17,21 8:2, 5,18 9:3,9,17,20 10:14 11:1,6,15,19,22 12:2, 11 13:25 14:2,3</p> <p>follow-up 10:8</p> <p>force 7:4,5</p> <p>forward 7:9 13:10</p> <p>funds 12:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">G</p> <hr/> <p>gap 10:21</p> <p>general 11:10</p> <p>gentleman 6:2</p> <p>goal 12:21</p> <p>Gomez 13:4,6,12</p> <p>good 6:10 13:6,9</p> <p>great 11:3</p> <p>Grover 14:4</p> <p>guess 9:3</p> <p>guest 12:19</p> <p>guys 7:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">H</p> <hr/> <p>handcuffs 6:6</p> <p>hear 5:22 7:8</p> <p>heard 6:16</p> <p>hearing 6:12 9:8,14 11:13 13:11</p> <p>hour 11:22</p> <p>Human 12:17</p>	<hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">I</p> <hr/> <p>impressed 6:5,10</p> <p>include 10:24</p> <p>increase 12:8</p> <p>indifferent 8:14</p> <p>informal 13:3</p> <p>information 6:22 12:22</p> <p>interpreter 12:7</p> <p>interpreters 12:8</p> <p>issued 6:17</p> <p>item 4:3 5:19 6:13 9:14 11:5,9 13:13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">J</p> <hr/> <p>job 6:1</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">K</p> <hr/> <p>Kilgore 9:19,21 10:1, 12,17 11:8 12:14 14:11,12</p> <p>kind 8:6 10:15</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">L</p> <hr/> <p>leadership 10:18</p> <p>lean 7:9</p> <p>leave 14:14</p> <p>liaison 12:18</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">M</p> <hr/> <p>make 6:4 10:8 12:19, 21</p> <p>March 6:21 8:7</p> <p>meaning 11:16</p>	<p>meant 11:24</p> <p>mediator 12:7</p> <p>mediators 12:8</p> <p>meet 7:15 10:5 13:8,9</p> <p>meeting 4:5,8,10,22, 24 5:1,9 6:18 7:2 9:11 11:24 12:15,16</p> <p>meetings 4:15 11:16</p> <p>members 6:15 11:10, 14 14:14</p> <p>microphones 7:10</p> <p>mics 5:22</p> <p>minute 4:8,15</p> <p>minutes 4:4,5,11,24 5:1,9</p> <p>miscellaneous 12:5, 6</p> <p>moment 6:10</p> <p>money 12:3</p> <p>month 9:15</p> <p>motion 4:2,9,20 5:4, 14 13:14,18,23 14:13</p> <p>move 4:10 9:8,12,14</p> <p>moved 5:5 13:15</p> <p>moving 4:3 5:19 6:13 11:9 13:13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">N</p> <hr/> <p>nay 4:18 5:12</p> <p>needed 6:4</p> <p>Nice 13:8</p> <p>Nickels 14:4</p> <p>Nicole 5:15</p> <p>November 13:1,11</p> <p>numbers 8:7 11:21</p>	<hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">O</p> <hr/> <p>observing 6:1 12:20</p> <p>October 12:15,16,24 13:11</p> <p>offered 6:15</p> <p>officer 5:25 6:3,11</p> <p>opening 4:5,8,15</p> <p>opinions 8:13</p> <p>oppose 4:17</p> <p>opposed 5:11</p> <p>ordinance 9:22 10:4, 5,6,9,11,20</p> <p>orient 12:23</p> <p>Outreach 9:8</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">P</p> <hr/> <p>p.m. 14:15</p> <p>part 12:21</p> <p>passes 4:2</p> <p>patrol 6:7</p> <p>performance 10:11</p> <p>Plan 9:8</p> <p>plenty 12:5,6</p> <p>point 12:9</p> <p>positive 5:19,21,24</p> <p>potentially 13:10</p> <p>price 11:16,23,25 12:1</p> <p>Pringle 4:13 5:5 7:5, 23 8:16,20 11:2 13:15 14:5,6</p> <p>process 8:9</p> <p>product 10:3</p> <p>profiling 7:3</p> <p>promotes 10:22</p>
---	--	--	---

<p>proposals 13:19,21</p> <p>public 11:10,11,13 12:19 14:14</p> <p>pursuant 13:19</p> <p>put 6:24</p> <p>putting 6:6</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">Q</p> <hr/> <p>question 6:16 11:15</p> <p>quorum 4:3</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">R</p> <hr/> <p>racial 7:3</p> <p>Randall 9:17 11:7</p> <p>Randall's 11:2</p> <p>read 6:24</p> <p>reason 13:17</p> <p>receive 4:4,21,25</p> <p>received 10:1</p> <p>recognize 7:19</p> <p>recognized 10:25</p> <p>record 14:15</p> <p>rejected 13:22</p> <p>related 13:20</p> <p>release 8:7</p> <p>remind 12:16</p> <p>renegotiated 13:20</p> <p>renew 8:23</p> <p>report 6:14,20 7:3 8:4,6 9:8 10:22</p> <p>REPORTER 5:22 7:8</p> <p>reports 6:18 7:24</p> <p>representative 12:17</p> <p>requirements 7:13 10:6,11</p>	<p>resources 6:4</p> <p>response 4:1,19 5:13 11:12</p> <p>rest 9:13,24</p> <p>results 8:16</p> <p>review 8:9 10:15</p> <p>reviewer 9:24</p> <p>ride 5:20</p> <p>Rights 12:17</p> <p>roll 14:2</p> <p>room 12:25 14:14</p> <p>Rose 9:4</p> <p>routine 8:17</p> <p>RSMO 13:19</p> <p>run 7:16 12:3,25</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">S</p> <hr/> <p>scare 13:10</p> <p>Schaefer 5:25 6:3</p> <p>sealed 13:19</p> <p>seamless 12:19</p> <p>Seamon 4:6 5:3,7,16 7:7 8:14 13:8 14:7,8</p> <p>seat 12:17</p> <p>Section 13:19</p> <p>selected 13:20</p> <p>self-policing 10:17</p> <p>send 4:22 8:10 9:17</p> <p>services 12:5,6</p> <p>session 13:14,18,24 14:13</p> <p>similar 8:15</p> <p>simply 6:6</p> <p>situation 5:25 6:8</p> <p>slowly 6:8</p>	<p>Smith 4:2,7,12,14,17, 20,25 5:4,6,8,11,14,19 6:12 7:1,9,14,20,25 8:3,12 9:4,7,13 10:10, 13,23 11:5,9,13 12:13 13:2,5,7,9,13,23 14:1, 4,7,9,11,13</p> <p>speak 11:11</p> <p>staff 11:10</p> <p>standards 10:25</p> <p>starting 13:1</p> <p>state 13:16</p> <p>stops 7:3</p> <p>submit 9:5</p> <p>submitted 7:20</p> <p>suddenly 12:7</p> <p>supplement 7:25 9:5</p> <p>supplemental 6:14 7:15,16</p> <p>suppose 10:15</p> <p>supposed 11:4</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">T</p> <hr/> <p>template 11:2</p> <p>term 12:15</p> <p>thing 6:4 8:17</p> <p>thinking 10:2</p> <p>thought 11:23</p> <p>thoughts 8:11</p> <p>time 6:8 9:10 10:2,18 11:21</p> <p>titled 9:22</p> <p>told 6:9</p> <p>tonight 12:20</p> <p>total 11:24</p> <p>track 10:21</p> <p>Tracy 7:7</p>	<p>traffic 7:3</p> <p>training 6:10</p> <p>transcript 4:21,22 11:17</p> <p>transcriptionist 7:10</p> <p>transition 12:19,21</p> <p>transparency 10:22</p> <p>Travis 9:23</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">U</p> <hr/> <p>unanimous 4:16 5:10</p> <p>understand 10:4</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">V</p> <hr/> <p>vote 14:2</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">W</p> <hr/> <p>wanted 6:19 12:14</p> <p>whatnot 8:9</p> <p>WIBBENMEYER 4:9,23 5:15 9:6 11:18, 20,23 12:4,12 13:16</p> <p>Williams 5:21,24 8:22 9:25 13:18 14:9,10</p> <p>wishes 11:11</p> <p>work 10:3</p> <p>working 7:21 9:9</p> <p>works 12:20</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">Y</p> <hr/> <p>year 6:18 7:18 8:6,19, 25 10:3</p> <p>years 8:24</p>
--	--	---	---